ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 7, 2012
1:31 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Denni s Egan, Chair
Senat or Joe Paskvan, Vice Chair
Senat or Linda Menard

Senator Bettye Davis

Senat or Cathy G essel

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
SENATE BI LL NO 146
"An Act establishing a snow classic as an authorized form of
charitable gam ng."
- HEARD & HELD
SENATE BI LL NO. 175
"An Act relating to the practice of naturopathy; and providing
for an effective date."
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 146
SHORT TITLE: SNOW CLASSI C
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) G ESSEL

01/ 17/ 12 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 6/ 12

01/ 17/ 12 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 17/ 12 (S) L&C, FIN

02/ 07/ 12 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
BILL: SB 175

SHORT TI TLE: PRACTI CE OF NATUROPATHY
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MOGUI RE

01/ 25/ 12 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -1- February 7, 2012



01/ 25/ 12 (S) L&C
02/ 07/ 12 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

LI NDSAY W LLI AMS, St af f

Senator Cathy G essel

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 146 for the sponsor.

REBECCA REI CHLIN, Chair

Advi sory Board

Four Valleys Conmunity School

G rdwood, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Said the board is in full support of SB 146.

DI ANNA HI | BNER, Ski Area Ceneral Manager

Al yeska Resort

G rdwood, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Fully supported SB 146.

LYNNE DORAN, Secretary

Advi sory Board

Four Vall eys Community School

G rdwood, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Fully supported SB 146.

JEFF PRATHER, Supervi sor

Tax- Gam ng G oup

Depart nent of Revenue

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding SB 146.

JERRY LUCKHAUPT, Assistant Reviser of Statutes

Legi sl ative Legal

Legi slative Affairs Agency

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding SB 146.

SENATOR LESI L MCGUI RE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 175.

GENEVI EVE WDJTUSI K, St af f

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -2- February 7, 2012



Senator Lesil MGuire

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ained SB 175 for the sponsor.

CHRI STINE NIEM, representing herself
Dougl as, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 175.

C. W JASPER, N.D.

Al aska Associ ati on of Naturopathic Physicians
Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 175.

DON HABEGAR, Director

Di vision of Corporations, Businesses and Professional Licensing
Department of Commerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent
( DCCED)

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Did not support SB 175.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:31:42 PM

CHAIR DENNI' S EGAN called the Senate Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:34 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Paskvan, G essel, Mnard and Chair Egan.
Senator Davis arrived soon thereafter.

SB 146- SNOW CLASSI C

1: 35:11 PM

CHAI R EGAN announced consi deration of SB 146

1:36: 39 PM

SENATOR DAVI S joined the commttee.

1:38: 36 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL, sponsor of SB 146, said that this neasure would
establish a snow classic like the Nenana lIce Classic only in

reverse; instead of nelting ice as a gaming activity this would
measure snow fall at a specific location on Munt Alyeska and
peopl e woul d guess how nuch snow is there. This is in addition
to charitable gamng, which would benefit the Four Valleys
Communi ty School .

At ease from1:38:36 p.m to 1:39:20 p. m

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 3- February 7, 2012



1:40: 55 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL explained that the Anchorage School District
used to have a program called community schools that used schoo

buildings in the evening and volunteer educators; it was a
wonderful program Now the community schools program continues
to exist only in the comunity of G rdwod where Four Valleys
Community School runs the education program The Community of
Grdwod has a lot of athletes, but they also have a lot of
young people going to college and the proceeds of this classic
would go to scholarships for them The bill just inserts "snow
classics" as an option for charitable gaming; |anguage in
Section 4 nmkes it very specific to Four Valleys Conmunity
School .

CHAI R EGAN obj ected for a sectional analysis

1:41:59 PM

LI NDSAY WLLIAMS, staff to Senator G essel, explained that
section 1 adds "snow classic" to the existing list of ganes of
chance and skill that can be permtted by the Departnent of
Revenue. Section 2 adds "snow classics" to the existing
definition of activity for the purposes of AS 05.15.115(c),
which limts how permttees can contract with operators. Section
3 adds "snow classic" to the existing list of activities that
can be licensed under AS 05.15 Ganes of Chance and Contests of
Skill. Section 4 defines and descri bes "snow cl assic."”

1:42: 59 PM
SENATOR PASKVAN asked if the Munt Alyeska Snow Cassic
currently exists and if so, for how | ong.

M5. WLLIAVMS answered there currently isn't a Munt Al yeska Snow
Classic; this legislation would start one.

SENATOR MENARD said this bill wuld just benefit the Four
Val l eys Conmunity  School and she wanted to allow other
communities to do the sane thing w thout passing another |aw.

M5. WLLIAMS replied that would be a policy call for the
| egislature to make. She said that Four Valleys Community
School s asked Senator G essel to introduce this |egislation. She
added that a couple of games of chance are open to an unlinmted
nunber of participants; for exanple the Crane Cassic, the Rain
Cl assic and ot hers.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -4- February 7, 2012



SENATOR MENARD said she was struggling with the role of
government getting involved in non-profits that benefit one
group and not the other.

M5. WLLIAMS responded that the sponsor would be open to those
di scussi ons.

SENATOR G ESSEL said absolutely and that she also wanted to hear
from the folks on line who adm nister the program about sone
possi bl e constraints.

1:47: 05 PM
At ease from1l:47:05 to 1:47:28 p. m

1:47:50 PM

REBECCA REI CHLI N, Chair, Advisory Board, Four Valleys Community
School, Grdwod, said the board is in full support of SB 146
She expl ained that Four Valleys Community School had been the
primary source of educati on, recreation and cul tural
opportunities for the community nenbers of all ages in G rdwood,
Indian and Bird Creek and Portage Valley since 1981. They serve
approximately 6,800 participants and have 700 volunteers on an
annual basis. As an organi zation they have had a |ong and stable
hi story of providing quality prograns for the comunity.

1:50: 30 PM

She said she has worked with community schools in one form or
anot her for 23 years. The program provi des year-round recreation
opportunities and is a nodel for programs like it. They provide

cross country running, fall trail running, indoor soccer,
downhi | | and Nordic skiing, gymasti cs, out door soccer,
softball, baseball, westling and nore for youth and adults.

They offer nore than 250 classes annually; the adult prograns
range from recreating, to cooking, sewing and to fine arts and
crafts.

Since 1984, Four Valleys has admnistered public funds awarded
to it by the G rdwod Board of Supervisors. These nonies all go
to provide direct services for the comunity. To help with the
funding, they have established collaborations and partnerships
with local businesses and non-profits and private groups to
provide the full spectrum of services the community seeks. They
have |l ots of volunteers who contribute their time and support in
a W de range of activities.

1: 52: 20 PM

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 5- February 7, 2012



M5. REICHLIN said even though they work very hard to nmake their
funding work on an annual basis, they still need to request
yearly grant funds from the G rdwood Board of Supervisors and
have a previous history of utilizing ganmng activities that the
community supported to raise funds. Years ago they had a very
successful Gold Rush Monte Carlo N ght that raised substanti al
funds, but when the gam ng regul ati ons changed they weren't able
to hold that event again. She said they have used pull tabs,
bi ngo night and raffles; they also understand gam ng regul ati ons
and reporting requirenents.

She said SB 146 would allow Four Valleys Community School to
control their own financial destiny. The Snow Cassic would
allow them to raise funds to support their mssion, would allow
them to utilize other resources beyond the community to support
their services. It would elimnate dependence on property tax
dollars through GVOS grants and would help the school to neet
its goal of self-sufficiency. SB 146 does not require new gam ng
regul ati ons, but expands on what is already enacted. It would
enabl e Four Valleys Community School to help itself.

1: 53: 59 PM

DIANNA H IBNER, Ski Area GCeneral Manager, Alyeska Resort,
G rdwood, said she also represented Hotel Alyeska and the
Al yeska Ski Area, and they all fully support SB 146. She said
that Al yeska Resort has been involved with the concept of the
Alyeska Snow Classic since the beginning and Four Valleys
Community School is a great program that is fully supported by
the conmunity. She said snow is a big deal in Grdwod and they
feel the Snow C assic could be a fun and popul ar event.

1:55:48 PM

LYNNE DORAN, Secretary, Advisory Board, Four Valleys Community
School, said she had lived in Grdwod since 1995. Basically she
wanted to let them know how the C assic would be structured. It
would be a split-the-pot event simlar to the Nenana |Ice
Classic. A neasuring device would be put on Munt Al yeska
separate from the resort and tickets would be sold for a
specific period of tinme when people could guess how nuch snow
had accunulated on the nmountain at their location. Selling
tickets would have a cut off tinme and there would be a wait and
see approach to build up anticipation. They would have a big
announcenent of how nmuch snow there was - again simlar to the
Nenana Ice Cassic - and after tallying the ticket information
they would announce the wi nners who would split the pot wth
Four Vall eys Conmunity School after adm nistrative costs.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 6- February 7, 2012



She said DOR's gamng supervisor could tell them why Four
Valleys is specifically asking for the Al yeska Snow C assic and
the steps an organi zation has to go through to be able to have a
cl assic versus just running an event on their own.

SENATOR PASKVAN said the fiscal note indicates that the revenue
is a maxi mum of $1,000 and asked where the Tax Division got that
figure.

1:57: 50 PM

JEFF PRATHER, Gam ng Supervisor, Departnent of Revenue, said the
$1,000 is an estinmate of what the departnent would get if Four
Vall eys gets this pernit and grossed $100,000. The tax in gam ng
is 1 percent of the profit.

SENATOR MENARD asked if he anticipated they would nmake $100, 000
the first year.

MR. PRATHER replied that he had no idea what this event would
bring in and used that as a way to prepare the fiscal note.

SENATOR MENARD asked if there is other history of when other
classics started up, |like the Nenana |ce O assic.

MR. PRATHER said he didn't know how the Nenana Ice dassic
fiscal note was witten. He added that classics typically do not
bring in a lot of noney.

SENATOR DAVIS said it would be good to hear the history about
the Nenana Cassic and comented that she didn't think this
cl assic woul d make that nuch in the first year

MR. PRATHER said he would get that information.

2:01:13 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL said it would be fun to find out about the
Nenana Ice Classic and that it was started in 1917 by sone
railroad workers and there probably wasn't a gamng |aw then.
She asked M. Prather to illumnate why this is so specific to
Four Valleys. Wy does ganmng |law specify who the operator of
t hese various things can be in sone cases?

MR. PRATHER answered that over tine the |egislature has chosen
to allow certain activities for certain tax payers. These
classics are generally limted to 1 to 6 permttees; three are
open to everyone.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -7- February 7, 2012



2:02:11 PM
SENATOR MENARD asked if classics are proprietary, because that
is how the aw was set up with the Gam ng Board.

MR. PRATHER said that was correct.
CHAI R EGAN asked how many of these permts have been issued now.
MR. PRATHER answered 14.

SENATOR PASKVAN said it's his general understanding that this
di scussion arose out of the greater di scussion about
| egalization of gambling in Alaska and the question is whether
historical contests would be recognized or not. Hence his
reluctance to raise the general concept of Ilegalization of
ganbling, but he wanted to know how this fits into any
hi storical context. The universe of permttees is very discrete
now and this mght use a different standard for |egalizing
ganbl i ng.

MR. PRATHER replied this is a guessing gane and guessing ganes
aren't allowed in the gam ng statutes except for classics, which
were established by the legislature and are under its purview.
That is what he told Four Valleys when they asked.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked what the 14 classics are. He suspected
they went back in the history of Alaska for quite sone tine.

MR. PRATHER replied that he would get the list for him

SENATOR G ESSEL noted that the Cabbage Classic is |imted to the
Pal mer Rotary, the Canned Salnon Cassic is limted to the
Pet ersburg Chanber, the Deep Freeze Classic is limted to the
Delta Chanber, the Goose Classic is limted to the Creaner's
Field in Fairbanks, the Snow Goose Cassic on the Kenai River
Flats and there are several ice classics in MGath and Big
Lake; and the Geater Juneau Chanber has the King Salnon
Classic. Honer has the Mercury Cassic. There is a pretty long
l[ist in statute.

2:05:57 PM
SENATOR MENARD said she wanted a nunber of snow classics,
because Al aska gets a |l ot of snow as well as ice.

MR. PRATHER said three classics are generic for anyone to use:

the Crane Cassic, the Rain dassic and the Snow Machine
Cl assi c.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 8- February 7, 2012



SENATOR MENARD asked if he thought it reasonable for anyone to
apply for a snow cl assic.

MR. PRATHER answered that it has been done before, but it would
have to be | ess specific.

SENATOR PASKVAN said the first sentence of section 3 seens to
incorporate all the types of ganbling activities including all
the types of definitions of classics in saying that the activity
may not be licensed unless it was in existence before January 1,
1959. He asked if that was the general beginning of the
di scussion of who nmay have been permtted under the statute as
it currently reads.

2:08: 29 PM

MR. PRATHER replied there nust have been a classic avail able at
that time. He assuned that the Nenana lIce C assic was out there
prior to statehood.

SENATOR PASKVAN said two other sentences, one dealing with the
Snow Machine Classic and the other with an Aninmal C assic, seem
to address the need for long term duration. He didn't see any
other criteria to allow sonmething that hasn't existed for quite
some time if not from the tinme of statehood in current AS
05. 015. 180(b) .

MR PRATHER sai d he was correct.

2:09: 53 PM

JERRY LUCKHAUPT, Assistant Reviser of Statutes, Legislative
Legal Departnent, Legislative Affairs Agency, Alaska State
Legislature, said traditionally the legislature has been very
proprietary in setting up these classics. A lot of people who
sponsor them don't want a whole |ot of conpetition. He was not
saying that is occurring here, but this the traditional way for
sonmeone to request a new classic. Wen the Cabbage C assic was
added a few years ago, that bill specifically provided that the
Pal mer Chanber of Commerce could be the only sponsor of it; and
the contest is about the weighted of the big cabbage to the
Pal mer Fair each year. There are a lot of <classics wth
reference to Senator Paskvan's question about section 3.

He said when the legislature started regulating gamng after
st at ehood, ganbling was outlawed (even in the territorial days).
Gaming was allowed for charitable purposes. So, the |egislature
at that tine said if didn't exist before 1959 you couldn't do it

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 9- February 7, 2012



except in certain enunerated circunstances. Since that tinme, a
whol e bunch of other classics have been added; about 10 of the
14 M. Prather nentioned were added in |ast 20-sone years. He
wasn't sure they were all still operating. For exanple, the King
Salnon Cassic in Juneau operated for a year or two in the 1990s
and then gave up. It's still on the books and the Juneau Chanber
is still the only one that can do it.

2:12:38 PM

MR. LUCKHAUPT said a lot of effort from volunteer help goes into
putting these on and it takes a while for themto catch on with
the public. People nust be prepared to go through sone |ean
years to nmake it work. He said the Nenana Ice O assic sustains
itself now, but at least four or five other ice classics have
been all owed over the years - and he hasn't heard anything about
them It's all up to the legislature as to whether they want it
to be for a specific thing or not. Every area of the state has
its own specific things and a lot of times classics are based
upon a particular geological feature: the Munt Marathon Race
Classic, for exanple, or the Goose Classic in Creaner's Field.

They had a little problemwith the aninmal classics in reference
to the other itemin section 3. The State Fair had a wheel that
turns with a hanster crawling into a hole and people bet on what
color the hole wll be. Someone raised the issue of ganbling.
Peopl e thought it had been going on since statehood, but there
was no actual proof to use the 1959 exception. So, then the idea
becane they had records of it operating since 2002 and everybody
loves to do it. That is why the specific exenption was crafted
by the | egislature.

MR. LUCKHAUPT described another game that is allowed because it
had been used in another state where people would bet on where a
cow in a field would leave his "road apple." They've done that
in Pal mer, too, he said.

2:16: 05 PM

SENATOR MENARD said she appreciated him comng up before them
They are deliberating a long tinme because the state has so many
non-profits and she didn't think 14 classics was a | ot.

MR. LUCKHAUPT responded that it's totally wthin the
| egislature's discretion to do what it wants.

2:17: 46 PM

SENATOR DAVIS conplinmented the Four Valleys Comunity School
saying if any group could make this work that group coul d.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -10- February 7, 2012



CHAI R EGAN hel d SB 146

SB 175- PRACTI CE _OF NATURCPATHY

2:18:41 PM
CHAI R EGAN announced SB 175 to be up for consideration.

2:18: 45 PM

SENATOR LESIL MCGQUI RE, sponsor of SB 175, said this neasure
would correct an oversight in statute and regulation wth
respect to the practice of naturopathic nedicine in the state
It would allow prescribing of naturopathic concentrates that are
extracts of a plant, tree, tree root, noss, fungus or other
nat ural substance that is not a controlled substance. It is part
of the existing regulation in 12 AAC that naturopathic
practitioners are specifically allowed to prescribe.

She said there are 43 naturopaths in the state: 16 in Anchorage,
2 in Eagle River, 2 in Palner, 15 in Fairbanks, 1 in Seward, 2
in Kenai and Honer, 1 in Sitka and 4 in Juneau. They have been
practicing under a licensing statute that was put into law in
1987. Alaska is one of 15 states that specifically license
naturopathic doctors. Oher states give a broader range of
prescriptive authority; 11 of them give prescriptive authority
for those substances that are not controlled and 4 of them
actually give naturopaths prescriptive authority for substances
that are controlled as well.

2:22:32 PM

Alaska is the one state that |icenses naturopathic physicians
but doesn't allow them to prescribe controlled substances.
However, an exception was nmade in regulation and today they want
to put that regulation into statute for clarity.

SENATOR MCGQUIRE said the issue cane up when sone naturopathic
physi ci ans who had been prescribing these natural renedies for
their patients had their prescriptions suddenly denied at the
pharmacy. They were told it was at the direction of the
licensing board that stated the Al aska statute was unclear.

She said her opinion is that nothing in this bill expands the
authority of naturopathic physicians practicing in the state. In
fact, they will continue to do everything they are doing, but it
wll be put into law. She said a proposed anendnent by Senator
G essel provides further clarity by adding dietetic renedy,
homeopat hi ¢ renedy and hydrot herapy to the | anguage.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -11- February 7, 2012



SENATOR MCGQUI RE said one exanple of a renedy is cayenne pepper
that is used as a sore throat renedy when mxed wth al cohol
The bottle is specifically |abeled with requirenents and a shel f
life, and says it's |icensed by the FDA

GENEVI EVE WOJTUSI K, staff to Senator MGQuire, explained that
Section 1 describes what a naturopath is restricted from doing
and Section 2 amends AS 08.45.050 to allow a person who
practices naturopathy "to give, prescribe or recommend a
medicine that is derived fromor is a concentrate of or is an
extract of a plant, tree, root, noss, fungus or other natura

substance if the nmedicine is not a controlled substance.™

Section 3 provides for an inmedi ate effective date.

2:27:01 PM
CHAI R EGAN obj ected for public testinony.

2:28:52 PM
At ease from2:28 to 2:31 p. m

2:31:15 PM

CHRI STINE NIEM, representing herself, Douglas, Al aska, said her
primary choice for health care is a naturopathic doctor and that
is why she is testifying today in support of SB 175. She said
she understands that sone therapies and natural herbal nedicines
have been denied to sone patients. It is wong to deny a
profession the ability to provide services within the scope of
their practice, their nedical education and training. It is also
wong to deny services that are needed by their patients.

2:33:16 PM
C. W JASPER, Al aska Association of Naturopathic Physicians, said
that there are actually 16 states that |I|icense naturopathic

doctors and of those, 11 give prescriptive authority and 5 all ow
control |l ed substances. The profession is grow ng trenendously.

He said he has been asked why he cane here if these other states
| icense naturopathic doctors and the reason is because he is a
fourth generation Al askan. His great grandfather cane over the
Chil koot Pass in 1898 and his famly held gold clains in Juneau.
He said he practices here because it is his hone.

MR. JASPER said his ability to practice here is dependent on
| egislative authority; and in 1986 a bill was passed with the

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -12- February 7, 2012



definition of the practice of naturopathy. The term nology was
pi cked by Fred Zharoff.

2: 36: 02 PM

He said herbal renedies are the heart and soul of what they do.
Cayenne pepper is a good exanple; taking it makes your nose run.
So, nedically speaking it is an expectorant. People ask why you
can't just put ground-up pepper in capsules, but the problemis
that as soon as the pepper is ground it begins to deteriorate to
a point where it loses its potency. In prescription form cayenne
pepper is called capsicum and it is prepared according to a
national standard so people get a predictable result. Wen it's
prepared in the nedical form it has the legend on it. It's not
a prescription drug, but a prescription nmedicine that you need
authority fromthe state to use.

MR. JASPER explained that in 1986 Senator Zharoff tried using
the definition of "medicine" as proposed to prohibit naturopaths
from using any prescription nedicine. It was very broad and
woul d include even capsicumtincture to which M. Jasper said he
couldn't agree. So they came up with this version, prohibiting

"prescription drugs,” which they considered a nuch narrower
definition. The definition of "drug" is a chenical substance and
a chemcal 1is sonmething that is produced from a chenica

process. So, naturopaths agreed that they would be prohibited
from prescribing prescription drugs, but not prescription
nmedi ci nes. The nedicines on this list, such as capsicum and
valium were the things they were being allowed to prescribe
because they weren't prescription drugs (they were prescription
medi cines). The bill gave directions to the state to adopt
regul ations that would define the natural medicines naturopaths
could use. So, they said okay and did it. Everybody agreed. So
this is the regulation they adopted 18 years ago and it's part
of the adm nistrative code now.

AS 08.45 says that "prescription drug” does not include a device
or herbal or honeopathic renedy. The state acknow edged their
understanding that herbal renedies would not be considered
prescription drugs in its statute. Then they defined "herbal
remedy” to be "nedicines derived from or a concentrate or
extract of a plant, tree, root, noss, fungus or other natura
subst ances. " Things were settled and M. Jasper said he took
these regulations around and showed them to Anchorage
phar maci sts who understood and agreed.

2:41:59 PM

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -13- February 7, 2012



He said on the State of Alaska website to apply for a
naturopathic license has a statenent rem nding people that
statutes and regulations have the force of law. So even though
it's been clear to everybody and they have practiced under this
interpretation for 18 vyears, pharmacies are now saying they
can't give these nedicines to naturopaths anynore. Their
solution is to ask the legislature to put this regulation [12
AAC 42.990] into statute.

2:44: 00 PM
SENATOR PASKVAN asked the reason for the change by the Iicensing
boar d.

MR. JASPER said he couldn't answer that because he didn't know
the internal mechanics of why this is happening.

SENATOR PASKVAN said he wanted to know what happened if there
wasn't a problem for 18 years.

SENATOR MENARD asked how nmuch of a concern there is about using
a syringe to admnister the vitamn B12 or vitamn C

MR. JASPER said he didn't know if that was a concern, but
nat uropaths give Bl2 shots and they need a device to do that.
Syringes have a warning simlar to the capsicum that says
federal law prohibits purchasing them wi thout a prescription or
words to that effect; that is why the original regulation said
t he device would not be barred from use by naturopaths.

2:46: 03 PM
SENATOR MENARD asked if pharmacists are refusing to |let them buy
the device as well.

MR. JASPER replied that he didn't know for sure but didn't think
it was an issue; it's minly being deprived of access to
medi ci nes.

SENATOR G ESSEL said that definition of naturopathy includes
nore aspects than sinply the herbal renedy; it includes
di etetics, honeopathic and hydrot herapies, and asked if he would
be open, if necessary, to include the definition of those other
nodal ities as well.

DR. JASPER said he wouldn't object to that and would | eave it up
to the legislature to determ ne whether that was necessary.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 14- February 7, 2012



SENATOR G ESSEL said if this was the only definition in statute
it my, by omssion, fail to allow him to provide dietetic,
honmeopat hi ¢ and hydr ot herapeutic nodalities.

CHAIR EGAN invited M. Habegar to answer Senator Paskvan's
question and to provide additional information from the
depart nment.

2:47:53 PM

DON HABEGAR, Director, D vision of Corporations, Businesses and
Prof essi onal Licensing, Departnent of Commerce, Conmunity and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent (DCCED), said the question was what the
division is doing differently and the answer is not a whole |ot.
He explained there is no board for naturopathy; it is a
division-run licensing program However, this issue has been
before them for quite sonme time and there was a recent change.
When the licensing |aw was being considered by the |egislature
it was his division's understanding and many in the health care
prof ession that the |language in statute AS 08.45.050 essentially
barred naturopaths for prescribing itens that are normally
obt ai ned t hrough a pharnacy.

In 1996, a letter from then Director Reardon to a |icensee
stated the division's position as follows:

If a product requires a prescription, then it is a
prescription drug and a naturopath my not give
prescribe or recommend it under AS 08. 45. 050.

Anot her quot e:
The definition of prescription drug in regulation 12
AAC 42.990 is consistent with nmy interpretation of the
I aw.
Anot her quot e:
It was not intended to allow naturopaths to prescribe
drugs refined and manufactured from plants. |[|nstead,
it was recognition of naturopaths' use of herbs in
their basic natural form
MR. HABEGAR said the division is not changing an interpretation
but is using a pathway that was set |long ago. That sane letter
of 1996 recogni zed the possible need to clarify regul ation.

2:51: 26 PM

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 15- February 7, 2012



SENATOR PASKVAN said he understood the 1996 letter, but the
guestion is if what was occurring in 2010 being prohibited in
2012.

MR. HABEGAR replied that the division is not changing any of its
practices. One of the things that has transpired is that in 1996
a |licensee asked the division if he/she could prescribe certain
things. The letter he quoted was a response to that and the
answer was no.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if what was allowed in practice in 2010
prohi bited in 2012: yes or no.

MR. HABEGAR replied no.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if naturopaths could obtain this from
pharmaci es in 2010.

MR. HABEGAR answered fromthe division' s perspective, no.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if they had been obtaining these renedies
or concentrates from pharmaci es for many years.

MR. HABEGAR said he couldn't answer that; it was before his tine
with the division.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked what happened recently that caused himto
enter an order to pharmacies to cease what appears to be a |ong-
| asting practi ce.

MR. HABEGAR replied that the division brought an allegation
against a licensee for prescribing and that brought the issue to
a head. It clarified for the division what was happening in the
practice.

2:54:18 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL said M. Habegar read the definition of
"prescription drug,” froma letter that cited 12 AAC 42.990, but
the regulation was not conpletely stated. The last half of the
definition says: "prescription drug does not include a device
or herbal or honeopathic remedy or dietetic substance in a form
that is not a controlled substance."

She referred back to other definitions in section .990; it
defines dietetics, nutritional therapies, substances, vitam ns,
mnerals et cetera. Nunmber 3 says "herbal renmedy” includes

"medicines derived from a concentrate or extract of a plant,

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -16- February 7, 2012



root, noss et cetera"” and nunber 4 says "honeopathic renedy”
nmeans "a renmedy defined by the homeopat hic pharnacopeia of the
United State, Decenber 1993 version,” and "hydrotherapy" neans
"the use of water." It is pretty clear in this regulation that
prescription drug is not a device, herbal substance (what M.
Jasper just elucidated), a honeopathic renedy or dietetic
subst ance. Senat or G essel opi ned that Di rector Rear don
m sapplied and msinterpreted those regulations and it's now
being applied in a nmuch nore restrictive way not in accordance
with what the regulations clearly say.

MR. HABEGAR replied that the Departnment of Law (DOL) has advised
that that Director Reardon's wasn't a bad interpretation and he
has conti nued down that pathway.

2:56: 58 PM
SENATOR G ESSEL said because of that vague interpretation she
wanted to anend this bill to nmake it much nore precise in terns

of including dietetic renedy, herbal renedy, honeopathic renedy
and hydrotherapy as in the purview of the naturopath in statute.

2:57:42 PM

SENATOR PASKVAN said he is troubled in looking at 12 AAC 42.990
that the history section indicates it was effective in 1994 and
anmended in 2006, but the regulation was anmended after the letter
was witten in 1996 and the practice still continued. He didn't
know how the departnment could argue its position, because it
seens grossly different fromthe history of that regul ation.

MR. HABEGAR responded that when positions turn over wth
admnistrations there is often a great deal of trying to figure
out historical context. In that light and having been advised
it seens to himthat the division set a path that was consi stent
with what it considered was happening. They also determned to
conti nue down that pathway.

CHAI R EGAN said he wanted a further explanation for the change,
froma doctor.

3: 00: 28 PM
SENATOR QJ ESSEL noved to adopt Anendnent 1.

27-LS1230\M 4
Martin

AVENDMENT 1

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -17- February 7, 2012



OFFERED | N THE SENATE
By SENATOR G ESSEL

Page 1, line 13, through page 2, line 2:
Delete all material and insert:
"* Sec. 2. AS 08.45.050 is anended by adding new
subsections to read:
(b) Notwthstanding (a)(1)(A) of this section, a
person who practices naturopathy nmay give, prescribe,

or recomend in the practice a device or, in a form
that is not a controlled substance, an herbal or
homeopat hi c remedy, a dietetic r emedy, or

hydr ot her apy.
(c) In this section,

(1) "dietetic renedy" neans nutritional
t her apy, nutritional counsel i ng, a nutritiona
substance, vitam ns, m neral s, or supplenments to
pronote health and to diagnose, treat, or prevent
di sease, illness, or conditions;

(2) "herbal renmedy" neans a substance
derived from or a concentrate or extract of a plant,
tree, root, noss, or fungus;

(3) "“honeopat hic renedy"” nmeans a renedy
defined in the current version  of Honeopat hi c
Phar nacopoei a of the United States;

(4) "hydr ot herapy” neans the use of water
in all fornms and tenperatures to pronote health and to
di agnose, treat, and prevent disease, illness, and

condi tions."

CHAIR EGAN stopped the hearing saying the conmttee would
continue public testinony on SB 175 at the next neeting.

3:02: 36 PM

CHAIR EGAN adjourned the Senate Labor and Commrerce Standing
Commttee nmeeting at 3:02 p. m

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 18- February 7, 2012



